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Dear Sir,
Sub: 37" Annual Report 2023-24 of Raj Packaging Industries Limited.
Ref: Raj Packaging Industries Limited, Scrip Code: 530111

In Compliance with Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, kindly find
enclosed herewith the 37" Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.
The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held on Monday, 24"
September, 2024 at 11:30 AM through AVM/OAVM.

The Annual Report of the Company has been uploaded on the website of the Company
and the same can be viewed on:

hitps://rajpack.com/pdf/annual-reports/RajPack Annual Report-2023-24.pdf

The same has been sent via email to the Shareholders of the Company in accordance
with the SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020

Kindly take the above information on records.

For Raj Packaging Industries Limited,
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Raj Packaging
Industries Limited will be held on Monday, 23" of September 2024 at 11:30 A.M. through Video
Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31% March, 2024, the Statement
of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with the Notes
attached thereto, along with the Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Ms. Neepa Kankaria (DIN: 06637083), Executive Director of the
Company who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
FOR RAJ PACKAGINGINDUSTRIESLIMITED

Sd/-
PLACE: HYDERABAD KHUSHBOO JOSHI
DATE: 08.08.2024 COMPANYSECRETARY
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NOTES:

In pursuance of Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings,
details in respect of the Director retiring by rotation and seeking re-appointment at this AGM, form
part of this Notice.

Pursuant to the General Circular nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020; 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020; 02/2021 dated January 13,2021; 19/2021 dated December 8, 2021,
21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 02/2022 & 03/2022 dated May 5, 2022; 10/2022 & 11/2022
dated December 28, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") and Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/ICMD1/CIR/P/2020/79, SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11, SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 and SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/ P/CIR/2023/Companies are permitted the holding
of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM") through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the
Members at a common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is
being held through VC/OAVM.

The Deemed Venue of the 37"AGM of the Company shall be its Registered Office.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM,
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA
Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of
remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency.
The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on
the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to all members on first
come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the

purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporatefinstitutional Members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a
scanned copy (PDF/ JPG format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority Letter / Power of
Attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised signatory(ies) who is
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

/are authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to cszoheb@sayaniassociates.in with a CC
to the Company Secretary at secretary@rajpack.com

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM along with the Annual report has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at hitps:// www.rajpack.com. The Notice calling the AGM along with the Annual report can
also be accessed from the website of the BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice
along with annual report is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the
Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

Recent circular requires submission of Aadhar/PAN number by every participant in securities
market. Members holding shares in demat form are, therefore, requested to submit Aadhar
card/PAN details to the Depository Participants with whom they have demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their Aadhar card/PAN details to the Company/
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (CIL Securities Limited)

Members holding shares in the same name under different ledger folios are requested to apply for
Consolidation of such folios and send the relevant share certificates to CIL Securities Limited,
Share Transfer Agents of the Company for their doing the needful.

Members are requested to send their queries at least 5 days before the date of meeting via email to
secretary@rajpack.com, so that information can be made available at the meeting.

In respect of shares held in physical mode, all shareholders are requested to intimate changes, if
any, in their registered address immediately to the registrar and share transfer agent of the
Company and correspond with them directly regarding share transfer/ftransmission /transposition,
Demat, change of address, issue of duplicate shares certificates, ECS and nomination facility.

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, a member of the Company may nominate a
person on whom the shares held by him/her shall vest in the event of his/her death. Members
desirous of availing this facility may submit nomination in prescribed Form-SH-13 to the
Company/RTA in case shares are held in physical form, and to their respective depository
participant, if held in electronic form.

Members holding shares in the electronic form are requested to inform of any changes in
address/bank mandate directly to their respective Depository Participants.

The company has appointed M/s. Sayani & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as
scrutinizer of the company to scrutinize the voting process.

Since securities of the Company are traded compulsorily in dematerialized form as per SEBI
mandate, members holding shares in physical form are requested to get their shares dematerialized
at the earliest.

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021 as aforesaid,
Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice.
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20. The Members can join the e-AGM 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice-

21. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which the
Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company.

22. THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The voting period begins on 20.09.2024 at 09.00 A.M. and ends on 22.09.2024 at 05.00 P.M.
During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 16.09.2024 may cast their vote electronically.
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at

the meeting.

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in Demat
mode with CDSL

Users who have opted for CDSL Easy / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The URL for wusers to login to Easy |/ Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
Myeasi.

After successful login the Easy / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting
service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so
that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

Ifthe user is not registered for Easy/Easiest, option to register is
available at:
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiReqgistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to
see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also
able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
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Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL

3)

following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under 'IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication,
you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

(check colour of no 2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-
Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.
Select “Register Online for [DeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IldeasDirectReg.isp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login® which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in demat
mode) login through their
Depository Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a

negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.
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(iv)

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Important note:
Members who are unable to retrieve User |D/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget

Password option available at abovementioned website.

In case of any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL following are
the details of Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in Demat mode with | helpdesk by sending a request at
CDSL

esk.evoling@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738
and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in Demat mode with | helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
NSDL

toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(vi) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual
shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

a. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
b. Click on “Shareholders” module.
c. Now enter your User ID
i.For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
ii. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
iii. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company.
d. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
e. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
f. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
For  Shareholders  holding shares in Demat Form and  other
than individual and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
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e« Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by
Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded

Bank in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

Details e [f both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please

OR Date enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as

of  Birth mentioned in instruction (v).

(DOB)

g. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab. Shareholders holding

shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly
note that this password is to be used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any
other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED= on which you
choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the
option “YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK", else to change your
vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print" option on the
Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app
can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the
mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.
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23. Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians — Remote Voting

(i) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates”
module. — changes as per your above point 6 rest you need to .

(ii) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(iii)After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

(iv)The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

(v) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

(vi)Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer at cszohebsayani@gmail.com and to the
Company at the email address secretary@rajpack.com (designated email address by
company), if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1)

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 5 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account number/folic number, email id, mobile number on
secretary@rajpack.com . The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries
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may send their queries in advance 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number on secretary@rajpack.com . These queries will be
replied to by the company suitably by email.

8) Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.

9) Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10) If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast
by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is
available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES

1) For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id at

rta@cilsecurities.com

2) For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP).

3) For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you
can write an email to helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor call on 022-23058542/43/ 1800225533

24. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

(i) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportions to the shares held by them in the paid
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e.16.09.2024.

(ii) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of the Voting at the Annual General Meeting first count the
votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast though remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make not later
than three days of conclusion of the meeting a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes
cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or person authorized by him.

(iii) Voting is provided to the members through e-voting and at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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(iv) If a Member casts votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail.

(v) The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
www.rajpack.com and on the website of CDSL and will be communicated to the BSE Limited.

25. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice, as well as Annual Report is open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company, during the office hours, on all working days up to
the date of Annual General Meeting.

26. SEBI has notified vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 that securities of the listed
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form. In view of the above and to avail various
benefits of dematerialization, members are advised to dematerialize shares held by them in physical

form.
By Order of the Board
FOR RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Sd/-
PLACE: HYDERABAD KHUSHBOO JOSHI
DATE: 08.08.2024 COMPANYSECRETARY
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ANNEXURE-A: ITEM. 2 OF THE NOTICE.

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting [Pursuant to
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and

Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings]

Name of the Director

Neepa Kankaria

DIN 06637083

Date of Birth and Age 08.09.1981 — 43 years
Designation Executive Director
Date of first appointment on the Board 30/03/2015
Nationality Indian

Brief Resume

Ms. Neepa Kankaria holds a Masters in Electrical
Engineering from Oklahoma State University, USA. She
has done her graduation (B.Tech) in EEE from MVSR
Engg college, Hyderabad.

She has worked as Design and Verification engineer and
later as Team lead at Redpine Signals- Hyderabad , with
corporate office at San Jose , California - USA.

She has a total experience of more than 15 years.

Qualifications

Masters in Electrical Engineering

Expertise in specific functional area

Technical expert and Management expert

In case of independent directors, the skills and | NA
capabilities required for the role and the manner

in which the proposed person meets such

requirements

Number of shares held in the Company 150992 Shares

List of the directorships held in other companies

1) Highline Finance And Investments Private Limited

Listed entities from which the person has
resigned in the past three years

NIL

Relationships between Directors inter-se

She belongs to Promoter group. She is the daughter of
Mr. Prem Chand Kankaria, Managing Director of the
Company

Relationship with other Directors, Manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel of the company- No

Chairman/ Member in the Committees of the
Boards of companies in which she is a Director

NIL

Remuneration details (Including Sitting Fees &
Commission)

Rs.27,30,000/- Per Annum

Last drawn salary: Rs, 2,27 500/-

Terms of appointment

Proposed Appointment as Executive Director who is
retiring by rotation and offered herself for reappointment
with continued exiting terms and conditions as per
Shareholders resolution dated 24th day of September
2022

Number of Board Meeting attended from the
period 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024

Four Board Meetings attended during the mentioned
period

(Eligibility to attend Meetings during the mentioned
period: Four)
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CHAIRMANS' SPEECH

Ladies and Gentlemen,

It is my pleasure to welcome you all at the 37" Annual General Meeting of your Company — Raj
Packaging Industries Limited. At the Outset, | would like to thank you for your continuous trust, support
and patronage extended to the Company.

The Directors' Report, Auditor's Report and the Audited Accounts with the Notes thereon for the year
2023-24 has via e-mail been sent to you and also uploaded on the website of the Company well in
advance for your kind perusal. The e-Annual Report elucidates overview of our Company's
performance across various quantitative and qualitative parameters during the Year 2023-24. During
Financial Year 2023-24 the Company has earned total revenue of was Rs. 3021.76 lakhs against the
Revenue of Rs. 4720.77 Lakhs in the Previous Financial Year ended 2022-23.

The Company has gone into losses for various reasons as explained in the section covered under
business performance. In present scenario there is huge challenge on the company to improve its
performance. Management is taking all the possible efforts to improve company’s performance for
which the Management is working towards developing new value added product with better margin.

We are very thankful to the stakeholders of the Company for being our pillars of strength in spite of the
toughest testing times as never seen before. | would like to thank my fellow Directors on the Board and
the members of various Committees for their support. | and my colleagues thank the Stock Exchange,
NSDL, CDSL, Legal Advisors, Auditors, State Bank of India, Government of Telangana and other
State and Central Institutions, for their valuable support and guidance.

Before | conclude, | wish to place on record my sincere thanks to the Shareholders for sustained
confidence reposed in the Board and to our customers for their continued confidence in the Company.
| also thank employees for their dedicated and sincere contribution made by them for the
Organization's growth and success.

Thank You,
Chairman
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of your Company along
with the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

1. COMPANY SPECIFIC INFORMATION
1.1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERTAIONS STATE OF AFFAIRS:

The performance during the period ended 31% March, 2024 has been as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

2023-24 2022-23
Particulars

Total Income 3021.76 4720.77
Total Expenditure 3211.61 4788.33
Profit (Loss)Before Tax (189.74) (67.56)
Provision for Tax (48.00) (17.68)
Profit(Loss) after Tax (141.74) (49.88)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of tax 1.35 13.83
Total Comprehensive Income (140.39) (36.05)
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (140.39) (36.05)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (3.10) (1.09)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

The total revenue of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 was Rs. 3021.76 lakhs and Loss of
Rs. (141.74) Lakhs against the Revenue of Rs. 4720.77 Lakhs and Loss and Rs. (49.88) Lakhs in the
previous Financial Year ended 2022-23.

1.2. Amount, if any, which the Board proposes to carry to any reserves: NIL

1.3. Dividend: The Board of Directors of the Company has not declared dividend for the Financial Year
2023-24

1.4. Major events occurred during the year:

1.4.1 During the Financial Year under purview no material event occurred having an impact on
the affairs of the company.

1.4.2 Change in the nature of business: The Company has not commenced any new business
nor has not changed its nature of business or discontinued/sold or disposed off any of its
existing businesses or hived off any segment or division during the year.

1.4.3 Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
company, having occurred since the end of the Year and till the date of the Report:
NIL.

1.5. Details of revision of financial statement or the Report:
The Company has not made any revision in its Financial Statements during the year under review.
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2. GENERAL INFORMATION:
Indian plastic industry market is one of the leading sectors in the country’'s econamy. Use of Plastic is
becoming important in various industries and its consumption is on rise. The industry is showing rapid
progress with new technologies and processing equipment, cost-effective manufacturing and new
generation raw material.

In the packaging segment flexible plastic packaging industry has seen continuous growth and holds a
major share of the market, the main reason for this is that flexible packages are found extremely
adaptable, aesthetically attractive, cost-effective, sturdy and packaged products in affordable quantities.
Plastic has been preferred choice for flexible packaging globally and in India due for various reasons. Its
inert properties and enhanced durability helps to increase product's shelf life thus aid in
transportation/portability. It is light weight and has ability to be moulded to any shapes or sizes and all
these factors make it cost effective.

The Indian plastic processing and packaging industries are experiencing significant growth driven by
market potential, technological advancements, and increasing consumer demand.Increasing demand is
driven by a growing middle class, rising disposable incomes, and the surge in organized retail and e-
commerce. Growth in key sectors like pharmaceuticals, automotive, infrastructure, and food &
beverages is further propelling demand for packaging solutions.

However, the industry faces challenges related to environmental impact. Rising concerns about plastic
waste are leading to stricter regulations and a shift towards sustainability. Companies are focusing on
developing recyclable and biodegradable packaging while balancing these goals with cost
considerations. New entrants have opportunities to succeed by innovating and meeting evolving market
and regulatory demands.

In summary, the Indian plastic processing and packaging industries are experiencing significant
however, balancing this growth with environmental sustainability and regulatory compliance is crucial for
long-term success.

3. CAPITAL STRUCTURE:
The authorized share capital of the Company stands at Rs.6,00,00,000/- divided into 60,00,000 equity
shares of Rs.10/- each.

The paid up share capital of the Company stands at Rs. 4,56,97,500 /- divided into 45,69,750 equity
shares of Rs.10/- each. There are no changes in the capital structure of the company during the year.

4. CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES: Not Applicable

5. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):
The Company has transferred the amount and the shares to IEPF under sub-section (2) of section 125
of the Act and the IEPF (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 which related to the
Financial Year 2015-16 during the period under review. Due Notices were sent to Shareholders, also
the Newspaper Advertisement pursuant to the |IEPF Rules were made in English and Vernacular
Language which was also placed in the website of the Company for the information of the
shareholders.

Details of the Nodal Officer. Ms. Khushboo Joshi, Company Secretary of the Company is the Nodal
Officer of the Company.

Further, details of the Nodal Officer is available on https://www.rajpack.com/investor-contacts. html
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IMPORTANT NOTE: The Company has to transfer amount and shares to |IEPF under sub-section (2)
of section 125 of the Act and the |EPF (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 which
related to the Financial Year 2016-17 during the Financial year 2024-25. Due Notices are sent to
Shareholders, also the Newspaper Advertisement pursuant to the IEPF Rules were made in English
and Vernacular Language on 6" July, 2024 which was also placed in the website of the Company for
the information of the shareholders which can be viewed on:

https://rajpack.com/pdfishareholder-corner/news-pub/Shareholders-Notice-Transfer-of-Shares-to-IEPF-

2016-17.pdf

The Company has also placed the list of Shareholders whose shares are due to be transferred in the
Financial Year 2024-25 on the website of the Company and can be viewed for the purpose of
verification on:

https://rajpack.com/pdf/uncliamed-dividend/list-of-uncliamed-shares-2016-17. pdf

Any Shareholder whose name appears in the mentioned lists can write a mail to
secretary@rajpack.com to impede such transfer of Shares to IEPF.

6. MANAGEMENT:

6.1 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
During the period under review there was no appointment or resignation of directors/KMP.

6.2 Declaration by Independent Directors and statement on compliance of code of conduct:

All the Independent Directors on the Board have given a declaration of their independence to the
Company as required under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors possess the integrity, expertise
and experience including the proficiency required to be Independent Directors of the Company by
virtue of the experience, fulfil the conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations and are independent of the management and have also complied with the Code
for Independent Directors as prescribed in Schedule IV of the Act.

|. The necessary declaration with respect to independence has been received from all the
Independent Directors of the company under sub-section (6) of section 148,

II. The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in
Schedule IV to the Act.

lll. I, Prem Chand Kankaria, Managing Director (DIN: 00062584) of the Company hereby affirm that
the members of the Board of Directors of the company and the senior management of the
Company are in compliance with the code of conduct laid down by the Company. Certificate for the
same is forming the part of this Annual Report.

6.3 Board Meetings:
During the financial year 2023-24, the Board of Directors duly met 4 (four) times on 27.05.2023,
14.08.2023, 08.11.2023and 10.02.2024 and in respect of these meetings, proper notices were given
and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the
purpose.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Name Designation
Mr. Prem Chand Kankaria (DIN: 00062584) Managing Director

Ms. Neepa Kankaria (DIN: 06637083) Executive Director

Mr. K K Maheshwari (DIN: 00223241) Independent Director

Mr. Dayaniwas Sharma (DIN: 017612135) Independent Director

Mr. Pushapraj Singhvi (DIN: 00255738) Non-Executive Director

NED (I) : Non- Executive Independent Director
NED : Non- Executive Director
ED . Executive Director

6.4 Committees:
6.4.1. AUDIT COMMITTEE: During the financial year 2023-24, (4) four Meetings of the Audit
Committee were held on 27.05.2023, 14.08.2023, 08.11.2023 and 10.02.2024.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE:

Name Designation Category
Mr. Dayaniwas Sharma Chairman NED(I)
Mr. K K Maheshwari Member NED(I)
Mr. Prem Chand Kankaria Member ED

Mr. Pushapraj Singhvi Member NED

The Vigil Mechanism Policy adopted by the Company is available on http://rajpack.com/policies.html

6.4.2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: During the financial year 2023-24 the
committee had NIL Meetings.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE:

Name Designation | Category
Mr. K K Maheshwari Chairman NED(I)
Mr. Dayaniwas Sharma Member NED(I)
Mr. Pushapraj Singhvi Member NED

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE

» To approve the fixation/revision of remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company and while
approving:
o To take into account the financial position of the Company, trend in the industry,
appointee’s qualification, experience, past performance, past remuneration etc.
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o To bring out objectivity in determining the remuneration package while striking a balance
between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

« To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their
appointment and /or removal.

« To carry out evaluation of every Director's performance.

« To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director, and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

« To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

« To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director and Whole-time Director(s) based on
their performance and defined assessment criteria.

o Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy adopted by the Company is available on
http://rajpack.com/policies. html

6.4.3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: During the financial year 2023-24,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once on 10th February, 2024 during the financial
year.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE:

Name Designation | Category
Mr. Pushapraj Singhvi Chairman NED

Mr. K K Maheshwari Member NED(I)
Ms. Neepa Kankaria Member ED

The Company has designated an exclusive email ID-secretary@rajpack.com for complaints/grievances.

6.4.4. INDEPENDEDNT DIRECTORS COMMITTEE: The independent Directors of the Company
met once on 28th February, 2024 during the financial year.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE:

Name Designation | Category
Mr. K K Maheshwari Chairman NED(I)
Mr. Dayaniwas Sharma Member NED(I)

Details of policy for Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors: The Company's Policy on
Directors’ appointment and remuneration can be viewed by the Stakeholders on the below website
https:/iMww.rajpack.com/policies. html

NOTE: MS. KHUSHBOO JOSHI, COMPANY SECRETARY OF THE COMPANY IS THE SECRETARY OF
ALL THE COMMITTEE MEETINGS.
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6.5 Recommendations of Audit Committee:
There is no such instance to report where the Board has not accepted the recommendations made by
the Audit Committee.

6.6 Remuneration received by Managing/Whole time Director from holding or subsidiary
company:
The Company has no Holding or Subsidiary Company.

6.7 Directors’ Responsibility Statement: In pursuance of section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

6.7.1. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

6.7.2. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the loss
of the company for that period;

6.7.3. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

6.7.4. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

6.7.5. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

6.7.6. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

6.8 Internal Financial Controls:
The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented
by the Company are adequate. The Company maintains appropriate system of internal control,
including monitoring procedures, to ensure that all assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition. Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide for adequate
checks and balances, and are meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded and
reported correctly.

During the period under review, there is no material or serious observations have been noticed for
inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

6.9 Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub section (12) of section 143 other
than those which are reportable to the central government:

Auditors have not come across any fraud and as such not reported u/s 143(12).
7. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES:
7.1 Report on performance and financial position of the subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures:
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint venture.

20




RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L25209TG1987PLC007550

7.2 Companies which have become or ceased to be subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures:
During the year neither any Company became its subsidiary nor ceased to be its subsidiary.

8. DETAILS OF DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year.

9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

During the period under review, the Company has not made any investments or given any Loan or
guarantees as mentioned in Notes to the Ind-AS financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2024 which forms part of the Audited Financials.

10. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:
All related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were disclosed in form AOC-2.
AOC -3 also discloses transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the
promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more. Your Directors draw attention of the members to
Note 33 to the financial statement which sets out related party disclosures and Annexure to this report.

11. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR}):
Since the Company does not have the net worth of Rs. 500 Crores or more, or turnover of Rs. 1000
Crores or more, or a net profit of Rs. 5 Crores or more during the financial year, section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable and hence the
Company need not adopt any Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.

12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

. Conservation of energy — Nil

Il. Technology absorption: NA

Ill. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo (Rs. In Lakhs): In last financial year, the Company had:
(i) Foreign Exchange earnings: NIL
(ii) Foreign Exchange outgo: 1166.95.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT:
The Company follows a comprehensive system of Risk Management. The Company has adopted a
procedure for assessment and minimization of probable risks. It ensures that all the risks are timely
defined and mitigated in accordance with the well-structured risk management process.

14.CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:
The Board of Directors has adopted the [nsider Trading Policy in accordance with the requirements of
the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 The Insider Trading Policy of the Company
lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed, and disclosures to be made while dealing with
shares of the Company, as well as the consequences of violation. The policy has been formulated to
regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of deals by employees and to maintain the highest ethical
standards of dealing in Company securities.

The Insider Trading Policy of the Company covering code of practices and procedures for fair
disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information and code of conduct for the prevention of insider
trading is available on our website.

15. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM:
Vigil Mechanism Policy has been established by the Company for directors and employees to report
genuine concerns pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
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Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 . The
same has been placed on the website of the Company.

16. MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES /REGULATORS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators /courts that would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

17. AUDITORS:

The following are the details of various auditors of the Company:

17.1 STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of Section 139 of the Act, NAC and Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:
119375W/S200011) have been appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office for a
term of five (5) years from the conclusion of the 35thAnnual General Meeting until the conclusion of
consecutive 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Statutory Auditor have confirmed their eligibility and submitted the certificate in writing that they
are not disqualified to hold the office of the Statutory Auditor.

The Statutory Auditor NAC and Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:
119375W/S200011)have issued their reports on Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2024. There are no adverse remarks or qualifications in the said report. The Notes on Accounts
referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The
Members are therefore requested to approve the Auditors' Report.

17.2. INTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and Section 179 read with Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014; during the year under review the Internal Audit functions and activities of the Company was
undertaken by the Internal Auditor of the Company on quarterly basis by M/s MGM & Co.,Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 117963W), the Internal Auditor of the Company.

Deviations are reviewed periodically and due compliance ensured. Summary of Significant Audit
Observations along with recommendations and its implementations are reviewed by the Audit
Committee and concerns, if any, are reported to Board. There were no adverse remarks or
qualification on accounts of the Company from the Internal Auditor.

The Board has appointed M/s KSVB & Co. Chartered Accountants (FRN: 153041W) as the Internal
Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25. Internal Audit Report is considered in every Board Meeting
of the Company and compliance is ensured.

17.3. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of managerial personnel) Rules 2014, the Board had appointed M/s.
S. S. Reddy & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake the secretarial audit of the
Company for the year 2023-24. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as Annexure | and
forms part of this report.

The Board has appointed M/s. Sayani& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial
Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25.
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17.4.COST AUDITOR:
The Company is not requited to appoint Cost Auditor as per the provisions of the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

The Company is required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, the Company has made and maintained such
accounts and records.

18. EXPLANATIONS IN RESPONSE TO AUDITORS’ QUALIFICATIONS: --

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer made-

18.1. Statutory Auditors Report:

The Board has duly reviewed the Statutory Auditor's Report on the Accounts for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and has noted that the same does not have any reservation, qualification or
adverse remarks.

Further, Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments.

18.2. Secretarial Audit Report:

The Board has duly reviewed the Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended March 31, 2024 on
the Compliances under the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act 2013, and the same
does not have any reservation, qualifications or adverse remarks. The report is self-explanatory
and does not require any further comments.

19.COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Company is in compliance with the applicable secretarial standards.

20. CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC):
There is no application filed for corporate insolvency resolution process, by a financial or operational
creditor or by the company itself under the IBC before the NCLT.

21. FAILURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE ACTION:
No such instances to report.

21.1. OTHER DISCLOSURES: There are no other additional disclosures affecting the stakeholders of the
Company which are required to disclose under this section.

22. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES UNDER LISTING REGULATIONS:
22.1. Statement of deviation or variation: During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has not made

any public issue, rights issue, preferential issue for which it is required to issueStatement of
deviation or variation.

22.2. Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR): The Management Discussion and

Analysis Report, pursuant to the SEBI| (LODR) Regulation appended as Annexure [V for
information of the Members.
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22.3.

22.4.

22.5.

Certificate on Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance:
Since the paid-up capital of the Company is less than Rs. 10 Crores and Net worth of the Company
is less than Rs. 25 Crores, Corporate Governance certificate under Provisions of Chapter IV,
Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not
applicable.

Suspension of Trading: No such instance to report.

Disclosures pertaining to the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) act, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The
Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees are covered under this policy.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE: The Details of composition of the Committee are given below:

Name Designation

Ms. Neepa Kankaria Presiding Officer
Mr. B. K. Pradhan Internal Member
Ms. Khushboo Joshi Internal Member
Mrs. Bhagwati Mahesh Baldwa External Member

The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed during the year.

o No. of complaints received: Nil
o No. of complaints disposed off: Nil
o No. of complaints pending at the end of the year: Nil

23. EVENT BASED DISCLOSURES

During the year under review, the Company has not taken up any of the following activities:

Issue of sweat equity share: No

Issue of shares with differential rights: No

Issue of shares under employee's stock option scheme: No

Disclosure on purchase by company or giving of loans by it for purchase of its shares: No
Buy back shares: No

Disclosure about revision: No

Preferential Allotment of Shares: No

The Company has not delisted its Shares in the given Financial Year

NN =

24.NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ COMPENSATION AND DISCLOSURES

None of the Independent / Non-Executive Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company which in the Judgment of the Board may affect the independence of the Directors.

25. CEO/ CFO Certification: Not Applicable

26. INSURANCE:

The properties and assets of your Company are adequately insured.
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27. EMPLOYEE RELATIONS:
Your Directors are pleased to record their sincere appreciation of the confribution by the staff at all
levels of the Company. A table containing the particulars in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure |l to this Report.

A statement showing the names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the
name of every employee is annexed to this Annual report as Annexure Il

None of the employees is drawing a remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- and above per annum or
Rs.8,50,000/- and above in aggregate per month, the limits prescribed under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) of Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

28. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND
VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from banks and
financial institutions.

29. DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE
ACCOUNT:

Not Applicable as there are no shares

30. EVALUATION OF BOARD:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, a separate exercise
was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors who were evaluated on
parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby
safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors
was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non -
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board also carried out
annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration as well as
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by the
employees at all levels, for the continued growth and prosperity of the Company. Your Directors
also wish to place on record their appreciation of business constituents, Banks, statutory
authorities and other financial institutions and shareholders of the Company for their continued
support for the growth of the Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

PLACE: HYDERABAD RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED
DATE: 25.05.2024 Sd/- Sd/-
PREM CHAND KANKARIA NEEPA KANKARIA
MANAGING DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DIN: 00062584 DIN: 06637083
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AOC-2

Particulars of contracts / arrangements made with related parties

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Sl. No. Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of the | Date(s) of
related party and | contracts/arrangem | contracts / contracts or | approval by
nature of entsftransactions: arrangements/ arrangements  or | the Board, if
relationship Transactions transactions any:

including the value, | Approved by

if any: Audit
Committee
and Board
Meeting in
last
Financial
Year:

1, Mr. Prem Chand | Office space (Flat | 11  Months  from | Rs. 3,47,160/- | 25™ May,

Kankaria No. 203 of Metro August, 2022(to be | (paid from April- | 2018
Residency) taken auto renewed every | 2023 to March
Managing on rent from 11 Months on | 2024)
Director in Raj | Mr.Prem Chand consent of both the
Packaging Kankaria, parties.
Industries Limited | Managing Director | (original date  of
in Raj Packaging contract: 26" May,
2018)
2. Ms. Neha Office space (Flat |11  Months  from | Rs. 4,86,360/- | 25™ May,
Kankaria No. 202 of Metro | August, 2022 (to be | (paid from April- | 2018
Residency) taken | auto renewed every | 2023 to March
Daughter of Mr. on rent from Ms. | 11 Months on | 2024)
Prem Chand Neha Kankaria consent of both the
Kankaria, parties.
Managing (original  date  of
Director of the contract: 26" May,
Company 2018)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
PLACE: HYDERABAD RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED
DATE: 25.05.2024 Sd/- Sdi-
PREM CHAND KANKARIA NEEPA KANKARIA

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00062584
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CERTIFICATE BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CFO OF THE COMPANY

To
The Board of Directors
Raj Packaging Industries Limited

Dear Sir,

As required under Regulation 17(8) read with Part B, Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we state that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31%'March
2024 and to the best of our knowledge and belief;
a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement nor omit any material fact nor
contain statements that might be misleading, and
b. These statements present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with
the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during
the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the company's code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls, we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the
audit committee, deficiencies in the design or the operation of internal controls, if any, of which we were
aware and the steps that we have taken or propose to take and rectify the identified deficiencies and

4. That we have informed the auditors and the audit committee of:
a. Significant changes in the internal control during the year,;
b. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and
c. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement of any
employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
M. NARSIMHA PREM CHAND KANKARIA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER MANAGING DIRECTOR

(DIN: 00062584)

PLACE: HYDERABAD
DATE: 25.05.2024
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ANNUAL RETURN — DRAFT E FORM MGT 7 (Annual Return) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24
HAS BEEN UPLOADED ON WEB LINK:

https://rajpack.com/pdf/shareholder-corner/annual-return/Draft-Annual-Return-2023-2024. pdf

NOTE: The signed copy of the Annual Return will be available on the same link within 60 days from the
date of the Annual General Meeting for stakeholder's perusal.
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Annexure |

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2024

To,
The Members
Raj Packaging Industries Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Raj Packaging Industries Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and
other Records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the financial year commencing from 1%'April, 2023 and ended 31 March,
2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

i We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% of March, 2024according to the
provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under,
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the Rules made there under,
iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under,

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

2. Compliance status in respect of the provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI ACT') is furnished
hereunder for the financial year 2023-24:

i.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; During the year under review, there was no instance to be reported by the
Company under SEBI Takeover Code.

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
Insider Trading Regulations; The Company has framed code of conduct for regulating
&reporting trading by insiders and for fair disclosure and displayed the same on the
Company’s website i.e. www.rajpack.com
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iii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable as the company has not issued any shares during the year
under review.

iv.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021, Not Applicable as the Company has not issued any Employee Stock
Options during the year under review.

V. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Municipal Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable as the Company has not issued any debt securities during
the year under review.

vi.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client, Not Applicable as the
Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the year
under review. However the company has CIL Securities Limited as its Share Transfer Agent.

vil. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not
Applicable as the company has not delisted/ proposed to delist its equity shares during the
year under review,

viii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not
Applicable as the Company has not bought back/ proposed to buy-back any of its securities
during the year under review.

ix. Other applicable laws include the following:

e Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

« Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

e Income Tax Act, 1961

e Telangana Tax on Professional Trades callings and Employments Act, 1987
e Pollution control Laws

e Minimum Wages Act, 1948

e Shops and Establishments Act, 1948

e Factories Act, 1948

e Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

i The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were complied with to the extent applicable.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above including the following:

a) During the year the Company has conducted 4 meetings of the Board of Directors, 4
meetings of the Audit committee, 1 Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee and 1
meeting of Independent Directors. We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company secretaries of
India.
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b) As per the information and explanations provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we report that

i. The provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rulesand
Regulations made there under to the extent of:

e External Commercial Borrowings were not attracted to the Company under the financial
year under report;

e Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) was not attracted to the company under the financial year
under report;

e Overseas Direct Investment by Residents in Joint Venture/Wholly Owned Subsidiary
abroad was not attracted to the company under the financial year under report.

i.  As per the information and explanations provided by the company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we report that the
Company has not made any GDRs/ADRs or any Commercial Instrument under the
financial year under report.

We further report that:

The Company has a CFO, Mr. M. Narsimha and a Company Secretary& Compliance Officer,Ms.
Khushboo Joshi.

The Company has internal auditors namely M/s. MGM & Co., Chartered Accountants.

The website of the Company contains policies as specified by SEBI(Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the
composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice of board meeting is given to all the directors along with agenda at least seven days
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We, further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the year under report, the Company has not undertaken event/action
having a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct and Indirect tax laws has
not been reviewed thoroughly in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory
financial audit and other designated professionals.
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e Civil suit has been filed by the Company for VVFlex Private Limitedand Hyderabad Industries
against an Outstanding amount of Rs. 75,21,941 and Rs. 8,58,007 respectively during the FY 2023-
24.

» According to the information and explanations give to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no statutory dues which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except the following notice of demand received on
31.01.2024 subsequently revised on 30.04.2024 is pending as on the date of this report:

Name of the | Nature of Amount Period to Forum where

Statute Due (Rs.) which the dispute is pending
amount relates

Goods and Goods and 2,00,092/ FY-2018-19 Assistant

Service Tax Service Tax Commissioner

Act, 2017

For S.S. Reddy & Associates
SD/-
S.Sarveswar Reddy
Proprietor
M. No. F12619C.P.No: 7478
Place: Hyderabad UDIN: FO12619F000445722
Date: 25.05.2024 PR: 1450/2021
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To
The Members of
Raj Packaging Industries Limited

Annexure A

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have relied on the reports given by the concerned professionals in verifying the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test

basis.

. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024
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ANNEXURE Il

INFORMATION AS PER RULE 5(2) OF CHAPTER XIll, COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Sl. Disclosure requirement Disclosure Details
No
1. | Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the Managing Director, Ratio to median
median remuneration of the employees of the Whole-Time director remuneration
Company for the financial year: Mr.  Prem Chand 26.4:1
Kankaria
Ms. Neepa Kankaria 15.8:1
2. | Percentage increase in the remuneration of % increase in
each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company remuneration in the
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial financial year
year Mr.  Prem Chand -
Kankaria
Ms. Neepa Kankaria -
Mr. M Narsimha 7%
Mrs. Khushboo Joshi -
3. | The percentage increase in the median -
remuneration of employees in the financial
year
4. | The number of employees on the rolls of the 47
company
5. | Average percentile increases already made in | Average Percentage increase of Managerial
the salaries of employees other than the | Personnel: No Increase in Remuneration of the
managerial personnel in the last financial year | Management during the Financial Year 2023-24
and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and | Other Employees — No Increase in Remuneration of
justification thereof and details if there are any | the Employees during the Financial Year 2023-24
exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration
6. | Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the | |, Khushboo Joshi, Company Secretary of the

remuneration policy of the company.

Company hereby affirm that the Remuneration of the
KMPs of the Company is as per the Remuneration
Policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE IlI

STATEMENT SHOWING THE NAMES OF THE TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN AS PER RULE 5 (3) OF THE

COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

The percentage of
equity shares held by
the employee in the
Company within the
Qualificatio meaning of clause (iii)
Designation of | Nature of n and The The last of sub rule (2) of Rule 5
the employee employmen | experience Date of age employment of the Companies |Whether any such employee is
t whether of the commence of held by such | (Appointment and [a relative of any director or
And contractual | employee ment of the employee Remuneration of [manager of the Company and if
SI. | Name of the | Remuneration or in the employmen | empl | before joining | Managerial Personnel) [so, name of such director or
No Employee p.a otherwise Industry t oyee | the Company | Rules, 2014, manager
Managing Contractual | B.Com 19/06/1987 69 - 13.68 Yes,
Director (Hons) Father of Ms. Neepa
Rs.5100000/- F.C.A Kankaria, Whole time
Mr. Prem woman Director of the
Chand Company
1. | Kankaira 40 years of
experience
Whole time Contractual |Mastersin [01/11/2011 43 |Red Pine Signals 3.1 Yes, Daughter of Mr. Prem
Director Electrical INC Chand Kankaria, Managing
Ms. Neepa Engineering Director of the Company
2. | Kankaria Rs.2730000/- 13 years of
experience
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Mf- Bira General Contractua |P.GDiploma in Plastics [19/06/2018 | 54 J. J. PlastalloyPvt. Ltd. NIL No
Kishore Manager | testing &Conversion &
Pradhan Projects and Technology and MBA
Operations 35 years of
M ) M. CFO Contractua [M.Com 02/05/2005 | 44 SunaceVinyal Chemicals NIL No
Narsimha I Pvt. Ltd
Rs.1353200/- o
15 years of
experience
Mr. Amulya Manager- Contractua |P.GDiploma in Plastics [19/06/2018 | 53 SK C Poly Engineers Pvt. Ltd NIL No
Ratna Singh Production || testing& Conversion
(Blown Film) | 10 years of | Technology
Rs.1227800/- experience
Mr. Om Consultant Contractua |B.Com 01/03/2004 | 68 Since inception NIL No
Prakash |
Purohit
Rs. 1041600/- 40 years of
experience
Mr. S. Madhu Marketing Contractual |MBA 16/11/2020 47 Supreme Industries Ltd. NIL No
Reddy Manager 15 years of
Rs.1113500/- experience
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Mr. Mahadev |  qajity Contractual | Graduate in Arts 19/04/2022 | 49 Oswal Extrusion Ltd NIL No
Pradhan Manager 5
8. years of
Rs. 9,00,000/- experience
:‘(ﬂr‘ Matlab |  operator Contractua |Non-Matric 01/12/1995 | 58 - NIL No
umar
|
Pradian Rs.556800/-
9. 30 years of
experience
Ms. Cs Contractua |CS 10/03/2017 | 38 HypersoftTechnologieslLtd. NIL No
Khushboo Rs.429000/- |
Joshi
10. 10 years of
experience
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ANNEXURE IV

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
1. Industry Overview

In today’'s era packaging plays an important role in determining product's value. Packaging has played a
crucial role in the development of society and the economy. Throughout history, packaging has continuously
adapted to meet the needs of society, driven by advancements in technology, changes in consumer
behaviour, and a growing awareness of environmental issues.

Packaging can generally be divided into two main segments: Rigid Packaging and Flexible Packaging.
Flexible packaging is a rapidly growing segment of the packaging industry. Flexible packaging has various
applications in the food and beverage industry and non-food segments like cosmetics, healthcare,
automotives and agricultural to name a few. With wide variety of options available, Plastic is one of the most
eminent packaging materials. The material's inert properties, lightweight, versatile usage and low-cost nature
have made it preferred choice for packaging worldwide. In comparison to other materials available, plastic
provides high strength and stiffness, enhanced durability along with ease in transportation.

India is one of the world's largest and fastest-growing flexible packaging markets, with growth driven by
factors such as Urbanization bringing with it improved infrastructure, with a large and expanding population,
there's an increasing demand for packaged goods, higher income levels and higher disposable incomes with
and need for improved quality of life and changing Lifestyles, growth in retails business and e-commerce
boom, growth in exports all have given new dimension to this industry.

As on today words like Sustainability and Recycling are synonym with Plastic industry. Governments all over
are working towards 3R's , reduce ,reuse and recycle. In India Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate
change have brought in PWM(Plastic Waste Management) rules to provide a frame work for managing
plastic waste in the country under EPR(Extended Producer Responsibility). Raj Packaging Industry has
registered itself with pollution control board under these rules and fulfils the EPR requirements.

2. Threats, Risk and concerns:

Flexible Packaging Industry in India is showing all positive signs, yet the industry faces some of the major
challenges. The volatility in the price of raw materials and its availability issues is a major challenge and has
added to rising inputs costs and resulted in reduction of profit margins of the vendors. The industry globally
has seen rapid changes in technology and in India we are facing lack of this advance technology and market
access. In India major vendors in packaging industry are in unorganized sectors because of which we lack
exposure to best manufacturing, marketing and branding practices. Another major issue industries in India
are facing is non-availability of skilled man-power and high cost skilled man-power. The Company with its
vast experience is working to tap opportunities that are available to its fullest potential to provide the
customized solution to the customers.

The flexible packaging industry has been facing flak from governmental organizations, consumers, and
environmental groups due to the waste created by the companies in this sector. Most of the materials used
are often non-recyclable. Flexible packaging companies have to account for designs that address
environmental issues, end-of-life disposal, and reduction of greenhouse gas and water footprints. This could
prove to be a costly process.
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3. Business/Operational Performance:

The year is under review has not been good. The company has achieved total revenue of
Rs. 3021.76 lakhs and Loss of Rs. (141.74) Lakhs against the Revenue of Rs. 4720.77 Lakhs and
Loss and Rs. (49.88) Lakhs in the corresponding Financial Year ended 2022-23.

For the second consecutive year, the company is experiencing losses after a long period of strong
performance. This downturn is primarily due to volatile raw material prices, exacerbated by both
domestic pricing issues and an influx of cheap imports. The industry’s overcapacity in flexi packaging
has led to a demand-supply imbalance, reducing the company's pricing power and forcing it to sell
products at less profitable rates while manufacturing costs rise. Additionally, the closure of a major
customer's Hyderabad unit has significantly impacted the company's revenue, further contributing to
its financial difficulties.

In present scenario, the Company there is facing huge challenge while it aims to improve its
performance. Management is making all efforts to improvement its performance by developing new

products, developing new customers and changing procurement policy.

4. Details of changes in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanation thereof:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Debtors turnover ratio 4.46 457
Inventory turnover ratio 5.68 7.64
Interest coverage ratio (3.62) (0.26)
Current ratio 4.21 3.24
Debt equity ratio 0.36 0.47
Operating profit margin (%) -1.70% 1.80%
Net Profit margin (%) (0.05) (0.01)
Return on Net worth (%) (0.10) (0.02)

Reason for more than 25% change in Inventory turnover ratio and Interest coverage ratio:

The change is due to reasons explained above under notes on Business performance.

5. Details of any change in return on net worth as compared to the immediately previous financial
year:

The return on net worth as mentioned above is negative during the year for reasons explained above
under notes on Business performance.

6. Dividend:

The Company has not declared Dividend for the Financial Year 2023-24.
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7. Credit Rating : Not Applicable

8. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:
Accounting Treatment of the company is in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

9. Internal Control system/framework :

The company has adequate internal system in place which safeguards all its assets & properties and
maintain accuracy of its financial transaction and records.

a. By the means of Secretarial Audit it is ensured that all compliances with various provisions of
law, rules and regulation are all complied with.

b. Internal Audits are conducted quarterly and report is presented to Audit Committee and based
on the same corrective measures are taken.

Based on the recommendation of various auditors steps are being taken to ensure company adheres to
corporate governance best practice.
10.Material developments in human resource/ industrial relations front, including number of people

employed:

There are no material developments in human resource/ industrial relations front, including number of
people employed.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Cautionary Statement This report may contain “Forward Looking Statements” including, but without
limitation, statements relating to the implementation of strategic initiatives, and other statements relating to
Raj Packaging future business developments and economic performance. While these Forward-Looking
Statements indicate the Company's assessment and future expectations concerning the development of the
Company's business, a number of risks, uncertainties and other unknown factors could cause actual
developments and results to differ materially from the expectations. These factors include, but are not limited
to, general market, macro-economics, governmental and regulatory trends, movements in currency
exchange and interest rates, competitive pressures, technological developments, changes in the financial
conditions of third parties dealing with the Company, legislative developments, and other key factors that
could affect the Company’s business and financial performance. Raj Packaging undertakes no obligation to
publicly revise any forward-looking statements to reflect future / likely events or circumstances.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
PLACE: HYDERABAD RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DATE: 27.05.2024

Sd/- Sd/-
PREM CHAND KANKARIA NEEPA KANKARIA
MANAGING DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DIN: 00062584 DIN: 06637083
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIESLIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Raj Packaging Industries Limited
(“the Company”), whichcomprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the material accounting policies and other

explanatory information (hereinafter referred toas”Ind ASfinancialstatements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its loss, other comprehensive

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of thelnd AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statementssection of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India(ICAT) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financialstatements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of

the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
Appropriateness of the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) | Our procedures, in relation to testing of ECL
provision in respect of trade receivables carried at | provision recognised, included the following;
amortized cost: Understanding and evaluating the design and
(Refer Note 6 and Note 28 to the Ind AS financial testing the operating effectiveness of controls in

statements) respect of ECL provision for trade receivables carried

The Company has trade receivables aggregating to Rs. atamortised cost

675.71 lakhs as at March 31, 2024, in respect of which . . L
Reading of the underlying sale orders and invoices,
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the Companyapplies the simplified approach permitted | as applicable to understand the nature of trade
by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, and recognises | receivables, and the dates on which the payments fall
expected lifetime losses from initial recognition of the | due.

receivables. The provision for ECL as at March 31, 2024

is Rs. 31.25 lakhs. Assessing the appropriateness of the credit loss
provisioning  methodology  used by the
This is determined as a key audit matter as | Management, which involves the use of historical
determination of the ECL provision involved | trends such as cash collection, performance of the
application of judgment by Management in respect of | current year against historical trends and the level of
matters such as maximum contractual period of credit | creditloss over time

risk and probability of credit loss given the significant
number of aged receivables from customers. Based on the above procedures performed, we did
not find any significant exceptions to the ECL
provision recognised in respect of trade receivables
carried at amortized cost

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s
Reportand Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s
reportthereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is malteriallyinconsistent with the Ind AS
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materiallymisstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in thisregard.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the FinancialStatements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IndAS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financialstatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of thelnd AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internalcontrol.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made bymanagement.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a goingconcern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of thelnd AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events ina manner that achieves fairpresentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitativefactors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significantaudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during ouraudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
relatedsafeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

]

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
malters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we reportthat:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
thebestofourknowledgeand belief were necessary for the purposes of ouraudit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
itappears from our examination of thosebooks.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books ofaccount.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements complywith the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of theAct.

f) Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financialreporting,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, asamended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given tous:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
ASfinancialstatements — Refer Note 32.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were material foreseeable losses.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, no funds(which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
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V.

Vi.

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared any dividend in the current and the previous financial year.

Based on our examination which includes test checks, the Company has used accounting
software’s for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software’s. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For NACAnd Associates LLP

ICATI FRN: 119375W/S5200011
Chartered Accountants

Nikhil Surana

Partner
Place: Hyderabad Membership No.: 232997
Date: 25.05.2024 UDIN:24232997BKCEWUB8663
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ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATETO THE
MEMBERS OF Mfs. RA] PACKAGING INDUSTRIESLIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157
MARCH, 2024

On the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with

the auditing standards generally accepted in India and according to the information and explanations

given to us, we state that:

i) a)

In respect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets:

1. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE).

2. The Company does not have any intangible assets for the year ended 31t March, 2024.

b) All the PPE have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals during the

c)

year, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature
of its PPE. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties comprising of

Freehold Land and Buildings are held in the name of the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

b)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not carried out revaluation of its PPE and
accordingly, reporting requirements of paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunderand hence reporting under clause 3(i)(e)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to usand on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the management has conducted physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure
for such verification is appropriate. As per the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification of inventories as

compared to book records.

As disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of INR five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis
of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the
normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by
the Company during the year with such banks are broadly, in all material respects, in

agreement with the books of accounts.

47




NAC And Associates LLP Cont. Sheet

iii)

vi)

vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements of clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, to
the extent applicable with respect to the investments made during the year. The Company has not
provided any loans, guarantees and securities to parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the
Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no deposits within the meaning of directives issued by RBI (Reserve
Bank of India) and Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder have been accepted by the Company. Accordingly, reporting requirements of

paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacturing activities, and are of the opinion that
prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we are
not required to and thus have notmade a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate and complete.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, have been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us there were
no outstanding statutory dues as on 31t March, 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations give to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a)
abovewhichhavenotbeendepositedwiththeappropriateauthoritiesonaccountof any  dispute
except the following;

Name of the Nature of Due Amount Period to Forum where
Statute (Rs. in which the dispute is pending
lakhs) amount
relates

Goods and | Goods and 0.42 2017-18 AppellateAuthority
Service Tax | Service Tax
Act, 2017
Goods and | Goods and 2.00 2018-19 Assistant
Service Tax | Service Tax Commissioner  of
Act, 2017 State Tax
The Income | Income Tax 0.35 2020-21 Assessing Officer
Tax Act, 1961
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viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) a)

b)

€)

d)

x) a)

b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans to banks. The Company does not have any loans from Government, Financial

Institutions or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that the Company has not been
declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any

government authority

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term loans

during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, and on an overall examination of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company, we report that funds raised on short-term basis have not

been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associate and hence reporting
under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.Further, the Company

does not have any subsidiary or joint venture.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not raised any
funds on the pledge of securities held in its associate and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company does not have any
subsidiary or joint venture.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and
accordingly, reporting requirements of paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotmentor privateplacement

of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence,reportingunderclause3(x)(b)oftheOrderisnot applicable.
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x1)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

xvi)

a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no whistle blower complaints have been received during the
year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. Refer Note33 to
the Ind AS financialstatements.

a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate to the size of the
Company and nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the report of the internal auditors for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non- cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with them as per the provisions of Section 192 of the Act Accordingly,
reporting requirements under paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the reporting requirements
of paragraph3(xvi)(a)oftheOrderisnot applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements of paragraph3(xvi)(c)oftheOrderisnot applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and on the
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xvii)

xviii)

Xix)

XX)

basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Group has one CIC which is not
required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 70.65 lakhs in the current financial year. However,
the Company has not incurred any cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly,
reporting requirements under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumplions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the date of the balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As the provision of Section 135 of the Act, are not applicable to the Company during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For NAC And Associates LLP

ICAI FRN: 119375W/S200011
Chartered Accountants

Nikhil Surana

Partner
Place: Hyderabad Membership No.: 232997
Date: 25.05.2024 UDIN: 24232997BKCEWU8663
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ANNEXURE B REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(f) UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO
THE MEMBERS OF M/s. RA] PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157
MARCH, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s.RA] PACKAGING
INDUSTRIES Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that:

1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

4) also provide reasonable assurance by the internal auditors through their internal audit reports

given to the organisation from time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, broadly in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”.
For NAC And Associates LLP
ICAI FRN: 119375W/5200011
Chartered Accountants

Nikhil Surana

Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership No.: 232997
Date: 25.05.2024 UDIN:24232997BK CEWU8663
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|RAJ] PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(CIN: 125209TG1987PLC007550

|Balance Sheet As At 31st March 2024
(# in lakhs, unless as otherwise stated)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024

Particulars Note As at March 31st, As at March 31st,
_ No. 2024 2023
A |ASSETS
1 |Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 631.77 71473
(b) Financial Assets:
(i) Investments 3 0.10 3.67
(it) Other Financial Assets 37.83 38.56
2 |Current Assets
(a) Inventories 5 442.21 615.56|
() Financial Assets:
(i) Trade Receivables 6 644.46 704.56
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents T 0.72 0.33
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above ] 7.43 2272
(iv) Other Financials assels 9 10.26 13.91
() Current Tax Assets (Net) 7.49 19.94
(d) Other Current Assets 10 258.92 57.85
Total Assets (1+2) 1,811.19) 2,191.83
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |BQuITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 456.98 456.98
(b) Other Equity 12 872.82 1,013.24
2  |LIABILITIES
Non-Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities:
-Borrowings 13 19247 212.85
() Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 17.77 65.32
3 |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities:
(i) Borrowings 15 95.67 166.06
(ii) Trade payables 16
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and 0.49 0.79
small enterprises; and
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors 131.56 246.94
other than micro and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 21.23 22,52
(b) Other Current Liabilities 18 22,20 713
Total Equity and Liabilities {l+2+3}| 1,811.19' 2,191.83
Summary of material accounting policies I 1 I
Notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For NAC And Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants
Nikhil Surana Prem Chand Kankaria Neepa Kankaria
Partner Managing Director Director
DIN: 00062584 DIN: 06637083
M. Narsimha Khusbhoo Joshi
Chief Financial Company Secretary
Officer M. No. 27992

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024
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RA] PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN: L25209TG1987PLC007550

Statement of Profit And Loss for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

(% in lakhs, unless as otherwise stated)

! Note | Forthe Yearended | For the Year ended
Particulars No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I JRevenue from Operations 19 3,006.40 4,688.20
II |Other Income 20 15.36 32.57
III |Total Revenue (I +II) 3,021.76 472077
IV |EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 21 2,373.75 3,906.96
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-and
Progress 22 21.45 (24.75)
Employee Benefits Expense 23 262.02 255.00
Finance Costs 24 41.04 53.80
Depreciation 2 97.66 98.36
Other Expenses 25 415.59 498.96
Total Expenses (IV) 3,211.51 4,788.33
V  |Profitf (Loss) before tax (Il - IV) (189.75) (67.56)
VI |Tax Expense
Current tax 5 =
Deferred tax 26 (48.00) (17.68)
VII |Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V - VI) (141.75) (49.88)
VIII |Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans 1.25 18.26
(b) Fair Valuation of Investments 0.55 0.22
(¢) Income Tax on Above (0.45) (4.65)
IX |Total comprehensive income for the Year (VII + VIIJ) (140.40) (36.05)
X ]Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each.
Basic and Diluted (in ¥) (3.10) (1.09)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 45.70 45.70

Summary of material accounting policies

Notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For NAC And Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Nikhil Surana
Partner

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board

Prem Chand Kankaria
Managing Director
DIN: 00062584

M. Narsimha
Chief Financial

Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024

Neepa Kankaria
Director
DIN: 06637083

Khusbhoo Joshi
Company Secretary
M. No. 27992
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Raj Packaging Industries Limited
CIN: 12520971 G1987PLCON7550

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(¥ in lakhs, unless as otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
T 315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (189.75) (67.56)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 97.66 98.36
Provision for Expected Credit Losses 2143 -
Interest Expense 41.04 53.80
Laoss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net) (2.83) 215
Loss on Sale of Plant, Property and Equipment (Net) (452) =]
Dividend Income (0.00) (0.02)
Interest Income 2.74) (20.96)
OPERATING FROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (39.71) 65.78
Adjustment for:
(Increase)/ decrease in Inventories 173.35 {4.55)
(Increase)/ decrease in Trade Receivable 60.10 64441
({Increase)/ decrease in Other Bank Balances 15.29 (9.53)
(Increase)/ decrease in Other Financial Assets (22.15) (25.83)
(Increase)/ decrease in Other Assets 1645 (16.11)
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables (115.68) (165.74)
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Financials Liabilities (1.30) (3.00)
Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions & {4.75)
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 62,62 (0.64)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 149.02 480.04
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (749) (19.52)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 14153 460.52
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant & equipments (FPE) (14.74) (7.58)
Purchase of Investments (0.10) -
Sale of property, plant & equipments (FPE) 552 -
Dividend received 0.00 0.02
Interest received - 2096
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (9.32) 1340
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non - Current Borrowings (Refer [Note 29B) (20.38) (85.62)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Borrowings (Fefer Note 298) (70.39) (334.49)
Interest paid (41.09) (53.80)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (131.82) (473.91)
INET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IIN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+BHT) 040 0.01
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 0.33 032
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A5 AT THE END OF THE YEAR 0.72 033
Surmmary of material accounting policiies 1
MNotes 1 to 48 form an integral part of the financial staternents
As per our attached report of even date
For NAC And Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board
Chartered Accountants
Nikhil Surana Prem Chand Kankaria ~ Neepa Kankaria
Partner Managing Director Director
DIN: 00062584 DIN: 06637083
M. Narsimha Khusbhoo Joshi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 27992

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024

Place: Hyderabad
Date; 25.05.2024
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RAJ PACKAGING INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIIN: L.25209TG1987PLL007550

Statement of Changes in Fquity for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

(% in lakhs, unless as otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

| Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 071, 2022 456.9%
Change in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 456.98
Change in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 156,98
B. Other Equity
Securities Premium Acimailuted Other
Particulars R : General Reserve Comprek ive | Retained Earnings Total
eserve i
income

|Balance as at 31st March, 2022 99.00 3.36 11.46 958.29 1,072.11
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - (49.88) (49.88)
Remeasurement of post-empoyment benefit obligations (Net of]
tax) - - 13.69 - 13.69
Fair Valuation of Investments (INet of tax) = - 016 - 016
Dividend including tax thereon - - - (22.85) (22.85)
[Balance as at 31st March, 2023 99.00 3.36 25.31 885.57 1,013.24
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - {Hl,ﬁ} m
f\’;?\easumn'ent of post-empoyment benefit obligations (Net of] . . 0.92 . 0.92
Fair Valuation of Investments (Net of tax) - - 0.41 - 0.41
|Balance as at 31st March, 2024 99.00 3.36 26.64 733.82 87252
Surnmary of material accounting policiies 1
Notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of the financial staterments
As per our attached report of even date
|For NAC And Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board
Chartered Accountants
Nikhil Surana Prem Chand Kankaria Neepa Kankaria
Partner Managing Director Director

DIN: 00062554 DIN: 06637083

M. Narsimha Khusbhoo Joshi

Chief Financial Company Secretary

Officer M. No, 27992

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.05.2024
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Raj Packaging Industries Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended 31* March, 2024

Notes to Ind-AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

NOTE 1: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Raj Packaging Industries Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited company incorporated
and domiciles in India and has its registered office at Flat No. 202 & 203, 6-3-1247, Metro
Residency, Raj Bhavan Road, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500082. It is incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 and its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

The Company has got its manufacturing facility at Bibinagar Mandal, Nalgonda District,
Telangana and is engaged in the manufacture of multilayer co-extruded plastic film and flexible
packaging material. The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 25 May, 2024.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “‘Act’) read with rule 4 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principal (GAAP) on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention,
except for the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the
relevant Ind AS:

> Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at Fair value (refer accounting policy
on financial instruments)
> Defined Benefit and other Long-term Employee Benefits,

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements requires that the Management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure
of an item or information in the financial statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other
assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to
be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s
normal operating cycle of twelve months and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013.
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14

15

1.6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT & INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and
rebates and include amounts added on revaluation, less accumulated depreciation (except
Freechold Land) and impairment loss, if any. Costs include freight, import duties, non-refundable
purchase taxes and other expenses directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Capital Work-in-progress
Assets which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed as Capital Work-in-Progress.

Depreciation/amortisation:
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Straight Line

Method (SLM). Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Individual Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Depreciation on assets added/sold or discarded during the year is being provided on pro-rata
basis up to the date on which such assets are added/sold or discarded.

Gains/ Losses on disposals/de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and these are recognized in Statement of Profit &
Loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-
financial asset or a Group of non-financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the amount of impairment loss. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is considered as a
cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the
individual asset/cash generating unit is made.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and
recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the
relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenue, when or as control over distinct goods or services is transferred
to the customer; i.e. when the customer is able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services
and obtains substantially all of the remaining benefits, provided a contract with enforceable rights
and obligations exists and amongst others collectability of consideration is probable taking into
account customer’s creditworthiness.

Revenue is the transaction price the Company expects to be entitled to. In determining the
transaction price, the Company considers effects of variable consideration, the existence of
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1.7

significant financing contracts, non-cash consideration and consideration payable to the customer,
if any. The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which the transaction price needs to be allocated.

Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are resolved.

The amount of variable consideration is calculated by either using the expected value or the most
likely amount depending on which is expected to better predict the amount of variable
consideration. Consideration is also adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the
transfer of goods or services and the receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a
significant financing benefit either to the customer or the Company. If a contract contains more
than one distinct good or service, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation
based on relative stand-alone selling prices. If stand-alone selling prices are not observable, the
Company reasonably estimates those.

Revenue is recognized for each performance obligation either at a point in time or over time.

Sale of goods:

Revenues are recognized at a point in time when control of the goods passes to the buyer, usually
upon either at the time of dispatch or delivery Export sales are recognized based on the shipped-
on board date as per bill of lading, which is when substantial risks and rewards of ownership are
passed to the customers. Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of charges
collected from customers like transport, packing etc.

Other Income
Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amounts
invested and the rate of interest. For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest
income is recorded using the Effective interest rate method to the net carrying amount of the
financial assets.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Government grants related to revenue
are recognised on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are
deducted in reporting the related expense. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as
income over the expected useful life of the asset.

In case a non-monetary asset is given free of cost it is recognised at a fair value. When loan or
similar assistance are provided by government or related institutions, with an interest rate below
the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is recognized as government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and measured at fair value and the government
grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds
received.
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1.8

1.9

INVENTORIES
Inventories includes Raw Material, Work-in-Progress, finished goods, Stores & spares,
Consumables and Packing Materials and are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

Raw Material and Components - Cost include cost of purchases and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined using Specific
Identification Method.

Finished/Semi-Finished Goods -Cost includes cost of direct material, labour, other direct cost
and a proportion of fixed manufacturing overheads allocated based on the normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis.

Stores, Spare Parts, Consumables, Packing Materials etc. - cost is determined on weighted
average cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Adequate allowance is made for obsolete and slow moving items.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of
both:

(a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(a) Measured at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it is held under the hold to collect
business model i.e. held with an objective of holding the assets to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rate (“EIR")
method by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, gain or loss, if any, is recognised to
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
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A financial asset is measured at FVOCI, if it is held under the hold to collect and sell
business model i.e. held with an objective to collect contractual cash flows and selling such
financial asset and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding, It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value
movements recognised in the OCI, except for interest income which recognised using EIR
method. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the OCI is
reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

() Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Investment in financial asset other than equity instrument, not measured at either
amortised cost or FVOCI is measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair
value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any,
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instruments:
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are measured at FVTPL.

For all other equity instruments, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to
measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument shall be recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at
FVOCIL. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are
recognised in the OCI. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are not
subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in
equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCL The credit loss is difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable
and supportable including that which is forward-looking,.

The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant
financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to
life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of
impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from
its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.

The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12-month expected
credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of
the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit
losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12
months ECL.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity
instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for impairment
testing.

De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of
transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans & Borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit & loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments
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1.10

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts,
to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance
Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT:
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

v" In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

v In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

v" Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

v" Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

v" Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
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assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. For the purpose of fair value
disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The Company provides following post-employment plans:

(a) Defined benefit plans such a gratuity and

(b) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund and Superannuation fund

a) Defined-benefit plan:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is
the present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligations is calculated annually by actuaries through actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss:
(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailment and non-routine settlements; and
(b) Net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expenses
in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from

(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial(gains)/losses

(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling
(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling

are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-
measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future
pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and pensioner demographics. The Company
determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be
in line with best practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a significant
effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive income and balance
sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions.

b) Defined-contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to
separate funds and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums.
Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees” provident fund with
the government, superannuation fund and certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance
and Employees” Pension Scheme. The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans
are recognised as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services that
the payment covers.
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¢) Other employee benefits:

(a) Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability
at the present value of the obligation as at the Balance sheet date determined based on an
actuarial valuation.

(b) Undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised during the period when the employee
renders the related services.

(c) Expenses incurred towards voluntary retirement scheme are charged to the statement of
profit and loss as and when incurred.

(d) Other benefits comprising of discretionary long service awards are recognized as and when
determined.

LEASES

As a Lessee:

The Company’s lease asset classes generally consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease; and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of

the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent
of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

The Company did not have any long-term leases, the adoption of this Standard did not have any
impact on the loss for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2020.

As a Lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

a) Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled
during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are restated at the closing exchange
rates. Non-monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

TAXES ON INCOME

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement

of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
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Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting
profit due to temporary differences between accounting and tax treatments, and due to items that
are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities. Interest and
penalties on tax liabilities are provided for in the tax charge. The Company offsets, the current tax
assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally enforceable right and where it
intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on
net basis.

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements. Deferred
income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assels are not recognised where it is more
likely than not that the assets will not be realised in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the
future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a
present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original
maturity is three months or less.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method where by the profit before tax is adjusted for
the effect of the transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future
operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
company are segregated.

BORROWING COST
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of Cost of that assets, during the period
till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use or sale are
complete during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic EPS is arrived at based on net profit after tax available to equity shareholders to the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of
potential dilutive equity shares unless impact is anti-dilutive.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Company has identified its Managing Director as
CODM which assesses the operational performance and position of the Company and makes
strategic decisions.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing
standards applicable to the Company.
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Note 2 - Non Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment*

Property, Plant & Equipment Freehold Land | Buildings ImLpT*aozil;.:::its NI::::::; D‘:;:::;fi:ng qui;r;::nl Fu;?;::::nd Vehicles Total

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023 4.96 258.90 19.60 1,337.05 261 2.15 26.79 23.56 1,675.67
Additions - 6.43 - 1.15 - - - - 7.58
Deductions/ Adjustment - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4.96 265.33 19.60 1,338.20 261 215 26.79 23.56 1,683.25
Accumulated Depreciation at at April, 2022 - 90.01 7.84 753.98 1.99 2.04 8.32 5.96 870.15
Additions s 7. 1.96 84.01 0.3 - 249 213 98.36
Deductions/ Adjustment - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 97.53 9.80 838.00 2.24 2.04 10.81 810 968.51
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 4.96 168.89 11.76 583.11 0.62 0.11 18.47 17.60 884.73
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 4.96 167.80 9.80 500.20 0.37 0.11 15.98 15.47 714.73
Gross carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023 4.96 265.33 19.60 1,338.20 2.61 2,15 26.79 23.56 1,683.25
Additions - - 13.35 - 1.39 14.74
Deductions/ Adjustment - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4.96 265.33 19.60 1,351.55 2.61 215 26.79 24.95 1,697.99
Accumulated Depreciationas at April 1, 2023 - 97.53 9.80 $38.00 2.24 2.04 10.81 8.10 968.52
Additions - 7.70 1.96 83.14 0.2 - 249 215 97.66
Deductions/ Adjustment - - - - - - _ _ _
Accumulated Depreciationas at March 31, 2024 - 105.23 11.76 921.14 2.46 2.04 13.30 10.25 1,066.18
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 4.96 167.80 9.80 500.20 0.37 0.11 15.98 15.47 714.73
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 4.96 160.10 7.84 430.41 0.15 0.11 13.49 14.71 631.77

Footnote:

*Property, Plant and Equipment have been mortgaged / hypothecated against loans taken. Refer to Note 13 and 15 for details.
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Note 3 - Non-Current Assets - Financial Assets - Investments

Particulars

As at March 31st,
2024

As at March 31st,
2023

Investment in Quoted Units of Mutual Funds (Non-Trade)

10,000 Units (PY : 10,000 Units) of SBI Infrastructure Fund - - 2.78

Regular Plan -Growth Fully Paid-up (Face Value of Rs.10 each)

10 Units (PY : Nil) of Nippon India ETF Fully Paid-up (Face

value of Rs. 10 each ) 0.10 -

Investment in Quoted Equity Shares (Traded)

130 Shares of JSW Steel Ltd. Fully paid up (Face Value of Rs. 1

each) - 0.89
Total 0.10 3.67

Note 4 - Other Non-Current Financial Assets
Hesmied As at March 31st, | As at March 31st,
ST 2024 2023
Security Deposits:

Electricity Deposit 29.08 29.08

Balance in Gratuity Fund* 8.75 9.48
Total 37.83 38.56

* Refer Note 30

Note 5 - Current Assets - Inventories™
(Valued at Cost or Net realisable value which ever is lower)

As at March 31st,

As at March 31st,

Particulars 2024 2023
Raw Materials 293.90 369.07
Stock in Transit - 79.01
Finished Goods 8.36 7.38
Work-in- Progress 114.10 136.52
Consumables 25.86 23.58
Total 44221 615.56

Notes

*Inventories have been hypothecated as Security against loans taken. Refer Note 13 and 15 for details.
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Note 6 - Current Assets - Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

Particuls As at 31st Asat 31st
HERR March, 2024 March, 2023
Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 557.64 690.89
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 86.82 13.68
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired 31.25 9.82
675.71 714.39
Less: Provision for Estmated Credit Loss {31.25) {9.82)
Total 644.46 704.56
= —
Refer Note 13 and 16 for details of Trade receivables pledped as security
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
Not Due Cutstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts Total
Particulars Lee::;l::l; & 6 months 1-2 years 23 More than
! -1 vyear years years 3 years
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 390.20 69,41 98,03 - 557,64
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - - B6.82 86,82
(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good = < =
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - eredit impaired = = - 31.25 31.25
390.20 69,41 95.03 118.07 675.71
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtiul debts {Disputed + Undisputed) - - - (31.25) {31.25)
Total 390.20 69.41 98.03 86.82 - - 644,46
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Not Due Cutstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts Total
Particulars Lefm:hua\z & & months 1-2 years 23 More than
! -1 year years years 3 vears
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 520,19 64.08 106.61 - 6%H0.88
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant mcrease in credit risk - - 13.68 - 13.68
(111} Undisputed Trade Recervables - credit impaired = = -
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Recesvables - credit impaired - - - 9.82 9.52
520,19 G4.08 106.61 23.50 T14.38
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed + Undisputed) = = : (9.82) < {9.82)
Total 520.19 64.08 106.61 13.68 - 704.56
Note 7 - Current Assets - Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents
o As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Cash in hand 0.72 0.33
Total 0.72 0.33
Note 8 - Current Assets - Financial Assets - Other Balances with Banks
. As at 31st As at Blst
Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Margin Money deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 3.b0 17.589
Unclaimed Dividend 377 4.84
Total 743 2.72
Note 9 - Current Assets - Other Financial Assets
o As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Emplovees 1.36 0.38
Earnest Money Deposits 6.87 11.62
Interest accrued on Deposits 2.03 1.9
Total 10.26 13.91
—=
Note 10 - Current Assets - Other Current Assets
As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Prepad Expenses 5.55 6.20
Advance to Suppliers 8.36 0.27
Balance with GST Authorities - 30.80
Power Subsidy Feceivable 217 2.1F
Sales Tax Retmnbursement Receivable 11.40 1140
Sales Tax {APGST) Retund Recesvable - 092
Other Advances 145 610
Total 25.92 57.85
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Note 11 - Equity - Equity Share Capital

= As at March, 2024 As at March, 2023
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised:
Equity shares of " 10 each 60,00,000 | 6,00,00,000 60,00,000 | 6,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equity shares of * 10 each 45,69,750 | 4,56,97,500 45,660,750 | 4.56,97,500
Total 45,69,750 | 4,56,97,500 45,609,750 | 4,56,97,500

(i) The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of " 10 per share, Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the residual assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

. As at March, 2024 As at March 31, 2003
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares at the beginning of the year 45,69,750 |  4,56,97,500 45,69,750 | 4,56,97,500
Issued during the year - - = -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 45,609,750 |  4,56,97,500 45,690,750 | 4,56,97,500

(iii) Details of shares held by each share holder holding more than 5% shares

As at March, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
MName of shareholder Number of % holding | Numberof | % holding
shares held shares held
Mr. Prem Chand Kankaria {Fromoter) 6,28,000 13.74% 6,25,000 13.68%
Mr. Shyama Kankaria (Promoter Group) 2,46,508 5.39% 2,465,508 5.39%
Mr. Madhanchand Prasanchand(FPublic) 5,25,331 11.50% 514,840 11.27%
M/s. Chetanya Securities Private Limited (Promoter Group) 4,00,000 B.75% 4,00,000 B.75%

As per records of the Company, including its Register of Sharehelders/Members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(iv) Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year :

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of Shares | % of total % Change |MNo. of Shares| % of total % Change
Name of the Fromotst shares during the shares during the
year year
Mr. Prem Chand Kankaria 6,28,000 13.74% 0.48 6,253,000 13.68% 1.31%
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Singhi - 0.00% (100.00) 1,42,156 311% 0.03%
Mr. Rajendra Kankaria - 0.00% (100.00) 100 0.00% -99.76%
Tatal 6,28,000 13.74% 767,256 16.79%

(v) Aggregate number of bonus shares jssued and shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date - Mil,
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Note 12 - Equity - Other Equity

. As at 31st March,| As at 31st March,
Farticlans 2024 2023
(a) Securities Premium
As per last Balance Sheet 99.00 99.00
(b) General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 3.36 3.36
(c) Other Comprehensive Income
As per last Balance Sheet 25.31 11.46
Add: Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations (Net of Tax) 0.92 13.69
Add: Fair Valuation of Investments (Net of Tax) 0.41 0.16
Sub-Total| 26.64 25.31
(d) Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet 885.57 958.29
Add: Net Profit/ (Loss) for the current year (141.75) (49.88)
Less: Dividend Paid - 22.85
Sub-Total| 743.82 885.57
Total | 872.82 1,013.24

Footnotes : Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities Premium:
Securities premium is created due to premium on issue of shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

General Reserve:
General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the General Reserve
is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in
the General Reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss.

Retained Earnings:
The balance in the Retained Earnings represents the surplus after payment of dividend and transfer to reserves.

Note 13 - Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Secured#
Term Loans from a Bank (Interest rate ranging Current year Nil, Previous year 9.65% p.a. to
8.15% p.a) . 57.98
- 57.98
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (Refer Note 16) - (50.47)
Sub-Total (A) - 7.51

#Security Clause:

Borrowings mentioned above to the extent of:
Term Loan of Rs. Nil (Previous Year - Rs. 57.98 Lakhs) are secured by a charge on the current assets of the company, hypothecation of
existing plant and machinery and equitable mortgage of Land & Building of the Company. Loan is personally guaranted by Managing
Director. Itis repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments.

Unsecured
Loan from Related Parties* 192.47 111
(Interest rate 9% p.a.; Previous year 9% p.a)

Loan from a Body Corporate - 204.23
(Interest rate 9% p.a.; Previous year 9% p.a)

Sub-Total(B) 192.47 205.35
Total(A+B) 19247 212.85

* Refer Note 33
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Note 14 - Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

- As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2024 | March, 2023
Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) on account of :
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 62.64 72.60
Disallowances under various sections of Income Tax Act, 1961 (11.05) (2.21)
Business Loss (33.83) (5.07)
Total 17.77 65.32
Note 15 - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Particul As at 31st As at 21st
articeiars March, 2024 | March, 2023
Cash Credit Facility from a Bank 95.67 115.59
(Interest rate 9.65% p.a, Previous year-7.15 to 9.65 % p.a)
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts - 50.47
Total 95.67 166.06

Notes

Security Clause:

a) Cash Credit Loan from a Bank is secured by a charge on the current assets of the Company,
hypothecation of existing plant and machinery and equitable mortgage of Land & Building of the
Company. Further, the Cash Credit Loan is personally guaranted by Managing Director.

b) There were no material differences between the books of account and the stock statements submitted by
the Company to the bank in relation to the aforesaid working capital limits.
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Note 16 - Trade Payable

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2024 | March, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.49 0.79
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 131.56 246.94
Total 132.05 247.73

Note:

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act'). The disclosure

pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

0.49

0.79

Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest|
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the information available
with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by

the Company. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There
are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in

this regard in respect of payment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year.

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
Not Due Outstanding for following periods from the due date of transaction
Particulars z : ;
e Less than 1| 4 o Years | 23Yems | Merethan3 Total
Year Years
(i) MSME 0.49 - - - - 0.49
(ii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(i1} Others 131.56 - - - - 131.56
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Tatal| 132.05 - - - - 132.05
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Not Due Outstanding for following periods from the due date of transaction
Particul
articulars Less than 1 1.2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
(i) MSME 0.79 - - - - 0.79
(ii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(i1i) Others 246.94 - - - - 246.94
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total| 247.73 - - - - 247.73
Note 17 - Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
iy As at 31st As at 31st
Fraticnlay March, 2024 March, 2023
Unclaimed Dividends 3.76 4.84
Salaries and Wages Payable 13.85 14.07
Other payables 3.62 3.62
Total 21.23 22,52
Note 18 - Current Liahilities - Other Current Liabilities
N As at 31st As at 31st
Kot March, 2024 | March, 2023
Advances received from Customers 363 0.79
Statutory Dues 17.82 559
Printing Cylinder Deposits 0.75 0.75
Total 22.20 7.13
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Note 19 - Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Sale of Products
Manufactured Goods 3,006.40 4,688.20
Total 3,006.40 4,688.20
Note 20- Other Income
FieBoadings For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Interest Income 2.74 20.96
Interest on IT refund received 0.82 0.00
Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (Net) 2.83 _
Dividend Income 0.00 0.02
Gain on Sale of Investments 4.52 -
Miscellaneous Income 4.45 -
Bad Debts written off earlier now recovered % 11.59
Total 15.36 32.57
Note 21 - Cost of Materials Consumed
Particul For the year ended | For the year ended
RN 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Opening Stock 448.08 466.91
Add : Purchases 2,219.57 3,888.12
2,667.64 4,355.03
Less : Closing Stock 293.90 448.08
Total 2,373.75 3,906.96
Note 22 - Changes in Inventory
) For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Opening Stock:
Finished Goods 7.38 9.31
Work in Progress 136.52 109.84
Total (a) 143.90 119.15
Less:
Closing Stock:
Finished Goods 8.36 7.38
Work in Progress 114.10 136.52
Total (b) 12245 143.90
Total (a-b) 21.45 (24.75)
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Note 23 - Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended

March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 24343 23466
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 13.74 14.17
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 4.85 6.16
Total 262.02 255.00

Note 24 - Finance Cost

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended

March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest Expenses on:
- Term Loans 259 9.86
- Cash Credit 15.13 16.93
- Unsecured Loans 17.59 18.66
- Delayed payment of Income Tax 0.55 072
Other Borrowing Costs 5.16 7.62
Total 41.04 53.80

Note 25 - Other Expenses

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended

March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Manufacturing Fxpenses
Packing Material Consumed 30.97 49.74
Inks and Chemicals Consumed 92.01 132.22
Stores and Spares Consumed 15.54 31.65
Power andFuel 143.88 185.29
Job Work Charges 0.26 0.58
Repairs & Maintenance:
-Plant and Machinery 7.53 8.20
- Building 278 0.08
Printing Cylinder Charges 3.20 6.48
Sublotal 2096.58 414.25
Administration and Other Expenses
Office Rent 8.34 8.20
Payment to Auditors™ 125 1.25
Legal & Professional Expenses 4.03 411
Directors' Sitting Fees 1.80 1.70
Insurance 3.43 473
Rates & Taxes 14.52 1.79
Security Services 10,99 528
Telephone, Postage & Telegram 1.01 1.08
Provision for Expected Credit Losses 21.43 -
Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation - 215
Freight & Forwarding Charges 26.53 28.74
Discount, Rebate & Rejections (Net) 3.69 217
Commission - 110
Miscellaneous Expenses 21.61 22,40
Sub-total 119.01 84.71
Total 415.59 498.96
Payment to Auditors®
- for Statutory Audit 1.00 1.00
- for Tax Audit 0.15 015
- for Limited review and Certification fees 0.10 0.10
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26 INCOME TAXES

a) Tax expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss:

202324 2022-23
Current tax
Current year - -
Tetal current tax - -
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (47.55) (12.03)
Total deferred income tax expense/(credit) (47.55) (13.03)
Total income tax expense/(credit) (47.55) (13.08)
b) A reconciliation of the income tax amount between the enacted income tax rate and the effective income tax of the Company is as follows :
2023-24 2022-23
Enacted income tax rate in India 25,17 2517
Profit before tax (189.75) (67.56)
Income tax as per above rate - (17.00)
Adjustments:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - 1.63
Others (47.55) 234
Income tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (47.55) (13.03)
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by catergory are as follows:

a.

Financial assets

As at March 31, 2023
Investments

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances

Other Financial Assets
Total

As at March 31, 2024
Investments

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances

Other Financial Assets
Total

Financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities
Total

As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities
Total

Instruments
carried at fair

Instruments
carried at

value amortized cost
Note At Cost FVTOCI Carrying amount  Total carrying Total fair value
amount
(A+B)
3 3.67 - 3.67 3.67
(3] - 704.56 704.56 704.56
7 - 0.33 0.33 .33
8 - 2272 2272 2272
4,9 - 5247 5247 5247
3.67 780.08 783.75 783.75
3 0.10 - 0.10 0.10
(] - 644.46 644.46 644.46
7 - 0.72 0.72 0.72
8 - 7.43 743 7.43
49 - 48.09 48.09 48.09
0.10 700.70 700.80 700.80
Instruments Instruments
carried at fair carried at
value amortized cost
Note FVTPL Total carrying Carrying amount Total carrying Fair value
amount and fair amount
value
13,16 - 37891 378.91 37891
17 - 247.73 247.73 247.73
18 - 22.52 2252 22.52
649.17 649.17 649.17
14,16 - 288.14 288.14 288.14
17 ’ 132.05 132.05 132.05
18 - 21.23 21.23 21.23
- 441.42 441.42 441.42
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LIOTIDNTY RISK.

B Liquidity risk is defined s fhe nsk that the Campany will nat be able to aettle ar meet ita cbligations on tims, or ot & reasonable prcs. The Campany's treasury department is responzble for
Tiquidity. funding & wall a3 ssttlenwnt mansgement. In sddition, procasaes and palicies calated such riak are evarsesn by senior management. Management monitos the Company's nat
Tiquidity peaition though salling faresasts on the baaia of sxpertad cah flaws

Fimancig araige ments
Tha Cempany hiad asesss ta fallowing wndeavn Eamaswing faeilitis ot end of saparting pariad which could be used by the Managemant to mitigate its Liquidity Risk:

[ Particulary A ot March 31,2023 | Ae ot Maseh 33, 2028

| 68357 £53.0]
mount ubl 95467 11557
Tndrawn Lunas available 5700 |

Contrastual maburdty pattesn of borrowings

As at Manch 31, 2024

01 years 15 years Tatal
Laryg term borrewings (Tneluding eurrent masturity of
leng teem debit) - =
Shart term barrawings 95.67 - 56T
Tatal U567 > 9567
0.1 genrs Tatal
Lot tarmn Lot ooetnigs (e Iding ¢ urrant maburily af 2
047 g 57
o term dabit) 504 51 3
Shant teren boveawings 11559 = 11553
Tatal 166,06 751 17357

A at March 31, 02 | Asat March31, 3023
0-12 Manths 0-12 Menths
Trade Payables 13208
Cithar Finansial Liabilities el ]
Total] 153.28

€ MARKEIRISK- INTEREST RATERISK,

Interest rate risk 1o the risk that the fair value of future casl flows of the financial

putcunents will fluctusts beauga of changes
parition with regards ta inlerest income and inksrest sxpenass ond to manage the interest min nisk. trearury parforms a comprehensive corporate inferest mie risk manngsment by balancing
tha propaction af fixed rate ard floatig rate hnansial imtouments id ita total porticlia.

mackat intarast satas In arder to aptinizs the Company's

& alssest sate 5
Particulars A at 3at March 24 | A ot 31st March23)
Barrawinga bearing hved rate of intere 19247
Barrawings bearing varishle rata of tafaveat 9547

20233024 20052022
50 bp sneresso- dacranss in profits 018 023
0 b decrenae: Increnzs in profite (018 10.231

o RKET RISK- FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Company opsrates intemationally and portion of the business is fransncted in several sutrensies and cansequently the Company i expased to farsign sxchangs risk through its purchasss
from eversans suppliens in vanous foragn sucrencies. Exparts of the company arensghigble in companacn 1o its inports, Favsagn eutrency sxthangs rate exposuss is balancad by and prudent
hadging palicy.

Foreien Cummency Exposure
FIERT
Namno of the Instose st
Foreign Currency IR Foreign Curransy R
[Cipan ¥ oraygn Evehangs Expeaures - Payable- D50 [TEN | 6R52 123 | 105.20
Enreign Currency Risk Sensitty
A changs of 1% in Foreign cusrency would have following Lapact o profit bafore tax:
03102 FESIE]
Particulars o Carmney Tncreane 10 decrease 1% Ineremes 1% decreane
s {69 a6 11051 LIE
[icrense 7 Tdecrensel i probit ar Tose 10651 065 o5l 105

The Compaty enjoys natural hedge fo the extent of ol Exparts eteoted and b Inventory held lbeing sensitive to sxchange mate fuctuntians), Altheugh the Company belisres that these
derivatives constitite hedges fram n sconamis prospective, they migh! not qualify far hedge accaunting underInd A3 109,

E COMMODITY RISK

[} Frincipnl Faw Materinl for Company's produsts is variety of plastic palymers which are primacily decivatives of Crude Cil. Company sources its i material requirement from acrass the
glotes, Domestic mnrket prives ar= sl generally remai in spne with ntermationsl markst price stenacio

b} Valatiity in Cruda O prizes, Cusraney Ductuation of Fupss vis-b-vis other pramuent <usranties coupled with damaad-supply scenatia in tha world madset affeet the affectiva pres and
awailability of pelymers far the Campany. Campany =Hactively manages denls with avmlabality of maberial ns well as price wolatility througl
1 Widening ite acuseing base
L Appropriats contrac tsard commitments
A Well planned proe: ment & inrentacy strategy and
4 Prodant hadging peliey on forsign surrndy szpoauc
Fiak comemittan of the Company contpriaing membars frons Board of Directars and epsration has devaloped and snastad a sk ateatagy segard dity Price suak and its

setigation.

'3 cbipesfivaa whn managiog capital ass o
# safeguard their ability to contime ae = geing concern, ea that they san oontinue to pravide returns far benebis for cther
+ maintnin an optimal eapiin] structure to reduce the cast of spital

The Company monibars rapital on the basis of the Jallovning debt squuty rabe:

31 Masch, 2024 31 Maivehi, 2023
Hat Dbt 8814
Tatal Equity 132980
ek Debt to Total Equity 022

Company balisvas i conservative levarage poliey. Ita debt aquity iatio is sigunificantly lowss than the industey averags.
Cempany's modarats 2apex plan over the medinm tarm shall be Jacgaly funded thecugh intercal seeruals and term laans from basks.

B NetDebt Eeconciliation

As at Flst March, 2024 et 31sthnreh, 2023
Pasticulas - ‘Warking Capital
T il Working Capltal Loan | TR Lahe 'fonn £
Dpening Net ekt 263,33 11555 40177
Fracaads fram Besrevngs = N N
Fepayment of Borrawin TOES 19,92 26620
Closing Net Debt 19247 567 115.5%
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30 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO IND AS -19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"

i) Gratuity: In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratuity,

a defined benefit retirement plan ("The

Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees, The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on

retirement (subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of employment

that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by

actuarial valuation on the reporting date and the Company makes annual contribution to the gratuity fund administered by life

Insurance Companies under their respective Group Gratuity Schemes.
The disclosure in respect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below:

A. Balance Sheet

Present value of plan liabilities
Fair value of plan assets

Assetf/(Liability) recognised

Defined benefit plans
As at Asat
31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023
50.07 1258
58,82 52.06
8.76 9.48

B. Movements in plan assets and plan liabilities

Present value of  Fair Value of Plan

As at 1st April 2023

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest Cost

Opening Balance Difference

Investment Income

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/cost

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/cost
Benefits Paid

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in Experience Variance
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from Others

Employer contributions

Expenses

As at 31st March 2024

obligations assets
4258 52.06
5.65 -
310 4.02
(0.01)
1.07 -
(2.33) o
= 2.76
50.07 5882

Present value of  Fair Value of Plan

obligations assets
As at 1st April 2022 52.86 4811
Cutrent service cost 5.39 =
Interest Cost 376 342
Opening Balance Difference -
Investment Income = .
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/cost = =
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/cost 0.05
Benefits Paid (1.26) (1.26)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions (1.35) 1.71
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in Experience Variance (16.82)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from Others - -
Employer contributions = =
Expenses = =
As at 31st March 2023 1258 5206
The Company expects to contribute the differential liability to the funded plans in financial year 2021-22,
The Plan assets have been invested in LIC Group Gratuity Scheme
C. Statement of Profit and Loss
T 20230024 2022~ 7023
Employee Benefit Expenses:
Current service cost 5.65 539
Interest cost/(income) (0.91) 0.34
Total amount recognised in Statement of profit & loss 4.74 573
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Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net finance income/(cost) 0.01 (0.05)
Re-measurement (or Acturial)(gain)/loss arising because of change in effect of asset

ceiling/ expenses 107 (1.35)
Experience gains/(losses) (2.33) (16.82)

Opening Balance Difference ' 7

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (1.25) (18.23)

Assumptions
With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the
balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,

2024 2023
Financial Assumptions
Discount rate 7.200% 7.45%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition Rate 3.00% 3.00%

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality in Service : Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

As at 31st March, 2024

Change in Increase in Decrease in
Impact on defined benefit obligation assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 1.00% 47.98 (52.32)
Salary Escalation Rate 1.00% 51.62 (45.60)
Attrition Rate 0.50% 50.43 (49.71)

As at 31st March, 2023

Change in Increase in Decrease in
Impact on defined benefit obligation assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 1.00% 38.95 (46.75_)
Salary Escalation Rate 1.00% 4558 (39.83)
Attrition Rate 0.50% 42.61 (42.54)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the
key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same
method used to calculate the liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.

. The defined benefit obligations shall mature as follows:
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
1-5 years 22.24 14.63
6-10 years 16.11 20.13
More than 10 Years 11.73 7.83

ii) Compensated Absences: The Company permits encashment of compensated absence accumulated by their employees on
retirement, separation and during the course of service. The liability in respect of the Company, for outstanding balance of
leave at the balance sheet date is determined and provided as at the Balance Sheet date, The Company is of the opinion that
compensated absences are payable within 12 months of their accrual and thus, are not required to be actuarially valued.
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Naotes to the Ind-AS financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(¥ in lakhs, unless as otherwise stated)

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Profit / (Loss) after tax (PAT) available for equity shareholders (141.75) (49.88)
Weighted average mumber of equity Shares 45,69,750 45,6%,750
Momanal value of equity Shares (In Rs.) 10, 10.00
Basic & diluted eaming per share (in Bs.} (3.18) (109}

32 CONTINGENT LIABILTIES AND COMMITMENTS
{a1C t Liabilities - ot ack ledged as debits

(i} Disputed amount on Income Tax for FY 2020-21 0.35 0.35
(1) Dsputed amount on Goods and Service Tax for FY 2017-18 & 2018-19 2 -
b} G i 7
Estimated amount of i whe d o Capital Account and not provided for (net of advances) - Mil, (Previous year
INil).

23 DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Mames of related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions dusing the year and description of relationship:
(i} Enterprises having Common Key Managerial Personnel (KMI)
M5, Chetanya Secunties Private Limdted (A Company in whach Mr. Prem Chand Kankaria 1s a Director)
M5 Highline Finance and Investmenrts Private Limited { A Company in which Ms. Neepa Kankaria is a Divector we f 9th March, 2024}

{ii} Key Managerial Personnel:
Prem Chand Kankaria, Managing Director
Neepa Kankaria, Whele Time Divector
M. Marsimbia, Chief Financial Otficer
Ehushboo Joshi, Company Secretary

(iii} Relative of Key Managerial Personnel:

Meha Kankarsa
Enlerprises having N -
5. - Key Management Common Key Relalive it Key
N MNature of Transactions = Management
0. Personnel Managerial
Personnel
Personnel
1 _|Interest Paid
M/, Chetanya Securitios Private Limited ‘3':;‘;
/s, Highline Finance and Ivestiments Private Lomndted ”I;':;
2 |Rent Expense
r 3.47
hir. Pren Chand Kankara
(342
Ms. Neha Kanliaria e
{475
3_|Loan Repaid to
Chetanya Securities Private Limited Lo
{20.50))
Highline Finance and Inveshiensts Provate Linuted 27'?0!
4 M eral Remuneralion
M. Premu Chand Kankaria LI
(5100
Ms. MNeepa Kankaria =
(25207
. WL Marasimba 1278
(11.93)
s, Klushboo Joshd 348
(3.96),
5 |Oulstanding at year-end - Payable
) |Non-Current Borrowings - Note 13
M,/ 5. Chetanya Securities Private Limited a ";
Mys. Highlitie Finatice and Investments Private Limited 192.47
(204.23)f
(i1} |Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables - Note 16
5 156
s, . Kanlk
RIS (155)
~ 3 1.60
Mr. Prem Chand Kankaria i
(1087
3 .54
Mr, Bl Marsiml
e (0,82
> 0.33
M. Elushboo Joshi
ik 033)
5 (Guaranlee given for Cash Credil and Term Loan taken by the Company (o
the extent of loan payable)
Mir, Prem Chand Kanbaria (1:::7:

Notes:

a) Related party rel hup is as adentified by the tand relied wpon by the auditors.

b} Mo amounts in vespect of related parties have been written off/ written back during the year or has not made any provision been made for
doubttul debts/ receivable

¢} Figures in brackets velate in Previons Year

) Terms and Cond: for sales and puch All sale and puercl with the related pasties are in the ordinary course of business
based on nommal commercial terms, conditions and market vates with the related parties. For the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company has
not recorded any loss allowances for the transaction between the related parties

&} All the material ransactions stated above with related parties are on arms length basis,

34 Based on the “Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Company operates in Plastic Films and has its
production facilities and all other assets located in India and a5 such has only a Single Reportable Business Segment The Company does not have
any sales outsade India.

35 The title in respect of selt-constructed buddings and title deeds of all other immovable properties, disclosed in the Enancial statements inchaded
under Property, Plant and Equipment ave held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date,

36 The Company has not provided any loans or advances to above specified persons

37 The Company does not hold any Benami property. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.
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MNotes to the Ind-AS financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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38 The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter (as defined by RBI Circular) by any bank or financial Institution or other lender,

39 The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, during the
year,

40 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

41 The Company does not have any subsidiary. Hence, the provisions of clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017 are not applicable to the Company

42 The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement during the year and the previous year.

43 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:
{a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(bjprovide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(i1} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
{a)directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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AT i lakhs, unbess as otlerwise stated)

Stateswuts fot He gear oded March 31, 3124

44 Raties
Particalars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Ratio as on | Ratio as on
5 Ne Ratia Formula D March 31, March 31, Reason (If variation is mare
2024 2023 Variation tham 25%)
{a) | Current Ratio Current Assets | |[Current Assets= Current Lishiliby= Short L 27115 LA34ET 4345 a1 324 30.11% | On acconut of the decrease
Current Liabilities |Inventonies + Current tesm barrowings + Trade in borrowings and decrease
Envestent + Teade Payables + Other
Rocetvable + Cagh & Cash| fvancial Liabilirg+ in Trade weceivables as|
Equivalents + Other Current tax {Liabilities) + compared to the previons
(Current Assets + Contract|{ Contract Liabilitiest PR s Bl e e
Apsets + Assets held for | Provissons + Other v
ke gt Tl Slibe
(0 Debt-Equity Batin Drirt [ Expity D= Roary texin Equity= Equity + Reaerve 28614 132980 A7 147021 [ ] 026 -15.93%
L tng and carvent  |and Ssiplas
mahurities of long-term
borrowings and.
sedeemalile preference
sliaves treated as fuancial
(3] Delbrt Servace Coverage Rateo et Opetating Met Operating Income=s  [Debt Servwe = Inferest & {305) 13182 B4.61 4739 FLLEN] 018 -11294% | On seconut of lss nvcaved
Iicome / Debt  |Met profit aftes tases + | Lease Payments + in the current year, tie Debt
Service Nom-cash operating Principal Repayments service courage mtin has
expetiged + fnance cost
(d) Eeturn on Equity Ratio Profit after tax less [MNet Income= Net Profits |Shareholder's Equity (14175) 132980 {1988} 147021 {011) {003 ) 21420% | On acconnt loss ncurred in
prief. Divadendd « 100 Jafter taves - Preference
/ Sharelwolders  |Dividend
Equity
(e} Inventory Tamaver Ratio [Cost of Goads Solid [/ |Cost of Goods Sold [{ Opetag nventory + 239519 o 388220 51547 1083 753 4384% [On account of morease in
Average Inventery Closing uventery)/ ? production and stock prices
dnring the year
n Tiade Receivaldes Tunsover Mot Credst Sales [ [Met Credit Sales [{ Openvineg Trade 3,640 67451 4,688,210 7735 446 Lic) BN
Fatio Average Trade Eeceivables + Clasing
Receivables Trade Fecenvable)/ 2
(g} Trade Pavables Turover Bet Credat Paschases| et Credit Puscliases [{ et Trade Payaliles 221957 18989 388812 23514 1169 16.54 -2131%
Fatin [ Awesage Trade + Clostng Trade
Payakiles Payables)/2
(k) et Capital Tarneover Ratio Fevenne [ Average |Fevemme Average Working 302176 43517 4720.77 49571 694 952 0%
Waorsking Capital (Capital~ Average of
Curtent assets - Cnizent
Habilithes
i) Blet Profit Ratie MetProfit / Met | MNet Piofit HNet Sales {14175) 3,006.40 {49.88) 4,688 20 {0:05) {001 HITR | On acconit of Joss menired
o in the cument year, the
Fetamn on Investnent has
1) [Fehurm on Capatal Employed | EBIT | Capital |EEIT- Esrmangs before | |Capital Employed- Total (136.71) 154004 (1375) 1367.70 (0.10) (0.01) H60.16% | on account of loss menired
Employed mberest and taxes Assets - Current Liability
in the current year, there has
been decreased @ the Retum
ou Capital atio,
(k) Feturn on Investment Met Profit / Met  [MNet Profit Met Investment= Met {14175) 132980 {4988} 147021 {011) {0.03) 21470% | On acconut of Joss mcnrred
Trvestment Equity i the cwment year, e

Fetmm on Ivestnent has
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Notes to the Ind-AS financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(¥ in lakhs, unless as otherwise stated)

45 The Company does not have any undisclosed income that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous vear) in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

46 The provisions specified under Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the current financial year.
47 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

48 Previous year's figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever required to conform to current vear's classification. All figures of financials has
been rounded to nearest lacs of rupees.

Signatures to Note 1 to 48
For and on behalf of the Board

Prem Chand Kankaria Neepa Kankaria
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00062554 DIN: 06637083

M. Narsimha Khushboo Joshi

Chief Financial Company Secetary
Officer Membership No.: 27992

Place: Hyvderabad
Date: 25.05.2024
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